
Minutes 

Bristol Select Board 

March 26, 2015 

Present:  Select Board members:  Rick Alpers, Shaun Lagueux, Janet Cote, Betsy Schneider, Paul 

Manganiello and Town Administrator Michael Capone. 

Mr. Lagueux made a motion to approve the public and non-public minutes from March 12, 2015 

seconded by Mrs. Cote. With no further discussion, the Board voted 4-0-1 in favor of approving the 

minutes. 

Consent agenda: Mrs. Cote made a motion to approve the consent agenda dated March 26th to include 

the items named therein. The Board voted 5-0 to approve the consent agenda. 

Mr. Alpers welcomed Paul Manganiello to the Select Board. 

Election of Chair and Vice-Chair: 

Ms. Schneider made a motion to nominate Janet Cote as Chair, seconded by Mr. Manganiello. Mrs. Cote 

accepted the nomination. Mr. Lagueux commented that he would like to see Mr. Alpers continue as 

Chair due to his experience in governmental affairs.  Mr. Manganiello commented that he has done 

some research that states that the rotation of people serving as Chair on boards and committees is 

healthy and this is why he is voting for a change in the Chair position. Mrs. Cote commented that she 

has been in her Board position for two years and has gotten a feel for things and can step into the Chair 

role and the commitment to it. Ms. Schneider commented that  she feels Mrs. Cote is hardworking and 

diligent and has a strong understanding of the RSAs. Mr. Alpers commented that he feels he has done a 

decent job as Chair and has shown the leadership skills needed to run the meetings and taking the lead 

at Town Meetings too. Mr. Alpers stated that he would like to continue as Chair and has worked hard to 

be inclusive and fair in that role.  The Board voted 3-2 to approve Mrs. Cote as Chair.   

Mr. Alpers made a motion to nominate Mr. Lagueux as Vice-Chair, seconded by Mr. Lagueux.  Ms. 

Schneider made a motion to nominate Mr. Manganiello as Vice-Chair, seconded by Mrs. Cote.  Mr. 

Alpers commented that Mr. Lagueux has a sense of how the meetings operate and that it takes a lot to 

understand the job. Ms. Schneider commented that Mr. Lagueux did not have a lot of experience when 

he became Vice-Chair and feels that Mr. Manganiello will do just as good a job. Mrs. Cote commented 

that Mr. Manganiello has served as Vice-Chair on other boards and that the rotation of Chairs should be 

considered for this change also. Mr. Manganiello commented that the Vice-Chair position on the Budget 

Committee is not the same as the Select Board position but that he feels up to the task if elected.  The 

Board Voted 3-2 to approve Mr. Manganiello as Vice-Chair.  The Board voted 2-3 to not approve Mr. 

Lagueux as Vice-Chair. 

 



Committee Assignments: 

Mr. Capone stated that there are three board assignments required for a Select Board member to be on. 

These are the Historic District Commission, the Planning Board, and the Budget Committee.  Presently, 

Mr. Lagueux is on the Budget Committee, Ms. Schneider is on the Planning Board, and Mrs. Cote is on 

the Historic District Commission. The current assignments can be kept for now.  Mrs. Cote commented 

that decisions can be made at the April 9th meeting.   

Review of Merit Guidelines: 

Mr. Capone informed the Board that Kelly Lacasse is looking for feedback regarding the employee 

evaluation form and the scale for the point system for the merit review.  Mrs. Cote commented that she 

met with Kelly about the points range table and has made some suggestions.  Ms. Lacasse looked at 

other plans out there and the point range is more of a random choice. There are twelve questions that 

are used to determine the point range.  Mr. Lagueux commented that he likes the way it is broken out 

and it should be no big deal to move a point here or there. Mrs. Cote commented that the point of the 

merit system is to give the employee a goal to achieve. Mr. Manganiello asked if there was any history 

on this from the 2006 merit raises. Mr. Alpers commented that there was a Town Manager form of 

government then and that it was a wage study and not a true merit based raise. Mrs. Cote commented 

that there is a self-evaluation piece along with the Department Head evaluation  and that this allows 

them to come together and work together on goals. Ms. Schneider commented that she would like to 

see a peer review included next year.  Mr. Alpers commented that he has seen peer reviews fail and that 

it causes tension. The Department Heads are hired to do the evaluations. Mrs. Cote commented that 

sometimes a peer review can be valid and that it shouldn’t totally be discounted. Ms. Schneider 

commented that the first sentence in both questions #7 and #8 are identical and the redundancy should 

be changed. Mr. Lagueux moved to approve the Town of Bristol guidelines for the performance 

evaluation process for the merit  based system as amended, seconded by Mrs. Cote. The Board voted 5-

0 to approve the motion.  

79:E Process Preliminary Discussion: 

Mr. Capone shared an example of the application process that other towns have done as a framework 

for the Town of Bristol’s application process.  Most communities seem to follow the format presented.  

He also noted that Plymouth State had done a study on the 79:E process in the State so far which 

contained some interesting comments.  Mrs. Cote commented that she looked at information from the  

Plymouth State study and the Town of Pittsfield application and it seems that both start with the same 

information although some towns did not address the housing piece.  Mr. Capone will put something 

together based on this framework. 

Preliminary Discussion on Pawnbroker Ordinance: 

Mr. Capone commented that this ordinance is driven by statute and will depend upon the level of details 

the Select Board wants.  Police Chief Lewis was sent a few examples from smaller towns to look at.  Mr. 

Alpers commented that the Board should start slow and not overregulate to begin with.  The Board 



should start with public safety and can increase regulations after.  Mrs. Cote commented that the 

concerns of Chief Lewis need to be addressed in the ordinance.   Mr. Capone will prepare something for 

future consideration. 

Old Town Hall Community Conversation: 

Mrs. Cote commented that the Board is looking to know what the vision is from the townspeople 

regarding the use of the building now that it is fixed. Mr. Alpers commented that the building is not 

renovated but the work done has fixed a number of existing problems. Mr. Lagueux suggested  that the 

event be publicized on the website to reach as many people as possible and that a poster should be 

designed to put in downtown businesses to advertise also. Mr. Alpers suggested May 30th as a date as it 

is after Memorial Day and the summer people are back in residence. Mr. Manganiello asked if there will 

be a tour of the building. Mr. Alpers replied that a walking tour can be done at 9:00 am with a discussion 

to follow at 10:00.  Ms. Schneider commented that there should be a Board work session to discuss this 

and have some ideas to guide the conversation.  Mr. Alpers commented that he did not want to limit 

people’s thoughts with the Board’s suggestions. 

Town Administrator’s Report: 

An email was received from Sandra Heaney thanking the Board for recognizing her at Town Meeting for 

all her work on the Old Town Hall.  Ms. Heaney continues to refurbish the windows there.  Ms. Heaney is 

helping with the LChip grant bid process as the guidelines are pretty strict.  Dick Batchelder will be 

getting ready to install the railing on the front of the building as soon as the weather gets better.  

Hilda Bruno emailed a list of seven people who want to serve on the Decorating Committee.  The Board 

needs to formally adopt the list.  Mr. Alpers made a motion to approve the list of Decorating Committee 

candidates as presented, seconded by Mrs. Cote. The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the motion. 

The Town Office cleaning service funds were approved within the budget at Town Meeting.  The service 

will start as soon as possible. 

The fire alarm wires need to be moved to the new poles along Lake Street.  PSNH will not move the 

cables. Chief Yannuzzi has worked out a deal PSNH and White Mountain Cable to use their trucks to 

move the cables for a cost of $2,500.  It is a considerable savings over other options under 

consideration.  

Senator Jeanne Forrester has requested to attend the April 23rd Board meeting to provide updates. 

The RFP for the seasonal maintenance at Kelley Park may need to be looked at again after speaking with 

Tim Ford about how to open the field during the pre-season. The RFP process might be impacted. 

A meeting was held with the Department Heads regarding when to schedule the purchases of the items 

approved at Town Meeting to minimize the impact to cash flow. 



Mr. Hertrich contacted the Town about a logistics problem with his propane tank.  The propane tank for 

the Presidential  building is actually located on the Fudge Factory property.  A larger tank is needed for 

the Presidential building use. A possible solution would be an easement to locate the propane tank on 

the Mica building lot.  The Board will need to think about the pros and cons of this solution. Mr. Lagueux 

commented that a right of way across the Fudge Factory property would still be needed. Mrs. Cote 

asked about any wetlands overlay concerns. 

Select Board Items: 

Mr. Alpers shared an article regarding revitalizing downtowns and commented that this is an important 

issue that the Board should address in the future. 

Mr. Manganiello asked about the conversation at Town Meeting regarding the parking issue in the 

square. Mr. Capone replied that the project engineer, Mike Vignale, can meet with the Board in April or 

May to discuss the matter further.  It was suggested that he be present at the April 9th meeting. 

Mrs. Cote asked about the Rotary project ideas.  Mr. Capone commented that the deadline passed but 

he is asking Les Dion if the Town can submit a project after the deadline.  The proposed project would 

be to purchase some larger planters to add some greenery to Rollins Block. The planters cost around 

$1,000 each and 4 or 5 could be purchased with the Rotary contribution.  

Public Comment:  

Eric Rottenecker commented that the reverse angle parking in the square is a concern. Mr. Rottenecker 

commented that the road is narrow at the TD Bank because of the reverse angle parking.  

He thanked Mr. Alpers for his years of service as Chair of the Select Board. 

Kevin McCaffrie asked the Board what the specific procedure is to move the acceptance of the 

Association’s roads as Town roads.  Mr. Alpers replied that he should meet with Mr. Capone and Mark 

Bucklin to start the process. 

Margaret Hoyle asked that the Board bring back the Memorial Day ceremony to the square downtown 

instead of at the Middle School. Mr. Alpers commented that the public has to be okay with shutting 

down traffic for the half hour during which the ceremony takes place. The traffic creates too much noise 

to hear the speakers during the ceremony. The Memorial Day ceremony is not a Town function but run 

by the VFW. Ron Preble would need to be contacted and would make this decision. Chief Lewis 

suggested that the parade route could be shortened and start on North Main Street and that way a long 

stretch of Route 104 would not need to be shut down. Mrs. Cote commented that Ray Courchaine has a 

new speaker system that could possibly be used for these events.  Paul Simard commented that some 

towns have rules against using motor brakes in town. Mr. Alpers commented that this was looked at 

years ago in Bristol.  J brakes can’t be banned but signs can be posted asking that the J brake not be 

used in the downtown area.  



With no further public business to come before the Board, at 7:32PM Mr. Lagueux made a motion for 

the Board to go into non-public session under RSA 91-A:3 (a), (d), and (e), seconded by Ms. Schneider. A 

roll call vote was held. The motion carried by a vote of 5-0. 

At 8:35 PM, Mr. Lagueux made a motion to adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Schneider.  The 

Board voted 5-0 in favor of adjournment. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Wendy Costigan 

 

____________________________        ____________________________ 

Janet Cote, Chair             Paul Manganiello, Vice Chair 

 

 

____________________________         ____________________________    

Betsy Schneider, Select Board             Rick Alpers, Select Board 

 

____________________________ 

Shaun Lagueux, Select Board 

 


